
F-4-52 
Hannony SUrvey District 
Myersville vicinity 
Private 

ca. 1840-ca. 1930 

'Ihe Hannony SUrvey District covers about 25 acres centered on the 

intersections of Brethren Church Road and Hollow Road with Harmony Road 

near the junction of Little catoctin creek and a small trirutary stream. 

At the corner of Brethren Church and Harmony Roads was a woolen factory 

from about the 1840's to about 1900. 'Ihe district currently contains 

primarily residential buildings built in log, brick, and stone, beginning 

arout 1840 and continuing to the early 20th century. 'Ihree churches are 

located in the district, an 1870 stone Church of the Brethren, now with a 

stucco exterior, a brick Romanesque Revival Evangelical llltheran church of 

1879, and a 1909 Shingle Style Reformed church, which is now a community 

hall. The dwellings are typically three or five bays with one-story 

porches and rear wings. 'IWo of the dwellings have similar L-plans, with a 

three-bay residential section adjoining a gable-fronted three-bay part 

which in ooth cases may have been used as a store. 'IWo small unoccupied 

structures are the most recognizable conunercial buildings: one is a log 

1-1/2 story building with brick veneer at the intersection of Brethren 

Qmrch and Hannony Roads and a few feet south is a frame circa 1925 

grocery which is greatly deteriorated, but still has a metal advertising 

sign. The architectural variety and the narrow streetscape of Hannony 

suggests the interdependence of the domestic, religious, conunercial, and 

industrial life of the town during the second half of the 19th century. 
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HISIORIC CDNTEXT: 

MARYI.AND a::MPREHENSIVE HISIORIC PRESERVATION PIAN DATA 

Geographic Organization: Piedmont 
(Harford, Baltim::>re, carroll, Frederick, Howard, Montgomery 
counties, and Baltinore City) 

Orronological/Developrent Pericx:l: 
Agricultural-IlXlustrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870 
Industrial/Urban Dcminance A.D. 1870-1930 

Prehistoric/Historic Period '!hemes 
Architecture, Landscape Architecture and Conununity Planning 
:Economic (Commercial & Industrial) 
Religion 

Resource Types: 

category: District 

Environment: Village 

Historic Function and Use: 
Domestic/single dwelling/residence 
Domestic/secondary structure/SIOC>kehouse 
Corrnnerce/Trade/departrnent store/general store 
Religion/religious structure/church 

Known Design Source: None 
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.MARYLAND INVENTORY OF 
Maryland Historical Trust HJSTORJC pr;,)?ERT!ES 

Magi No. 

State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE ~yes x._no 

1. Name (indicate preferred name} 

historic Harmony Survey District (preferred); Beallsville 

and/or common 

2. Location 
9433-9532 Harmony Road, 3932-3948 Brethren Church Road, 

street & number 9428-9440 Hollow Road _not for publication 

city, town Myersville 

state Maryland 

3. Classification 
Category 
_x_ district 
_ building(s) 
_structure 
_site 
_object 

Ownership 
_public 
_x_ private 
_both 
Public Acquisition 
_in process 
_ being considered 
__ not applicable 

_x_ vicinity of 

county 

Status 
~occupied 

..x_ unoccupied 
_ work in progress 
Accessible 
_yes: restricted 
_yes: unrestricted 
_no 

congressional district 6th 

Frederick 

Present Use 
_ agriculture 
_commercial 
_ educational 
_ entertainment 
_ government 
_ industrial 
_military 

_museum 
_park 
_x_ private residence 
_religious 
_ scientific 
_ transportation 
_other: 

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of ~ owners) 

name Multiple property owners 

street & number telephone no.: 

city, town state and zip code 

5. Location of Legal Description 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Frederick County Courthouse liber 

street & number 100 w. Patrick Street folio 

city, town Frederick state Md. 21701 

6. Representation in Existing Historical surveys 

title 

date _federal _state _county _ local 

.pository for survey records 

city, town state 



7. Description 

Condition 
_excellent 
_x__ good 
-X----- fair 

Check one 
---1L deteriorated _ unaltered 
_ ruins _x_ altered 
_unexposed 

Check one 
~ original site 
_moved date of move 

Survey No. F-4-52 

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its 
various elements as it exists today. 

CON'IRIBUI'ING RESOURCE CXXJNI': 40 

The Harmony survey District encompasses approximately 25 acres centered on the 
19th century manufacturing village known as Beallsville until about 1890, which now 
contains approximately 21 residences with assoc:iated outl::uildi.rgs dating from about 
1840 to the present, two active churches 1::uilt in about 1870 and 1879, a third 
church of 1909, ncM used as a canmunity hall, and two commercial structures dating 
from about 1840-1850 and about 1925. 'lWo of the currently residential 1::uildings 
were also once combined commercial/residential structures during the 19th century. 
The district is located at the intersection of Harmony Road, Brethren Cllurch Road, 
and Hollow Road about 1/4 mile north of U.S. 40 near Myersville, Frederick County, 
Maryland. Of the approximately 49 1::uildings in the district, 40 {82%) contribute to 
the significance of the district in architecture, economic (commercial and 
industrial), and religion. 'Ihe two commercial structures are deteriorated and 
unoccupied; the general condition of the other principal structures ranges from fair 
to excellent. 

The buildings of the survey district are located along the sides of the three 
roads which intersect at its center. 'lWo streams, the source of power for the 
original industries of the village, run through the district, the principal one 
being Little catoctin Creek which runs north to south paralleling Harmony Road or 
the east side. 'Ihe other stream is an unnamed tributary which joins Little catoct 
from the west, crossing Brethren Cllurch Road just west of the intersection with 
Harmony Road and crossing Harmony south of the intersection. All road crossings of 
these streams are modern concrete structures. 'Ihe topography of the stream valleys 
constricted the available 1::uilding sites to the imnediate edges of the roads, giving 
a characteristically narrow streetscape to the district, especially at the corner of 
Harmony and Brethren Church Roads and on Harmony north of Hollow Road. This feature 
is important in the integrity of the survey district, suggesting the close 
association between the industrial and conunercial sites and the dwellings. 
Following are brief descriptions of the principal 1::uildings: 

Woolen Factory, 3948 Brethren Cllurch Rd.: Located at the northwest corner of 
Harmony and Brethren Church Roads, this 2-1/2 story dwelling has a stone first story 
and brick upper levels. A two-story porch is located on the south elevation. The 
windows are varied, with 2/2, 9/6, 3/3, and 3/1 all visible in the structure. 'Ihe 
lintels are plain and the gable roof is covered with corrugated metal. 'Ihe chimneys 
are located on the interior walls at the gable ends. The wilding's history is 
difficult to track from the exterior and land records are obscure. Its date is 
probably about 1840. 'Ihe 1858 Isaac Bond map of Beallsville points to this 
structure as the Woolen Factory, which was referred to in local histories and other 
land records as belonging to David Kailer from about 1849 until the 1860's, rut the 
title research on the wilding does not confirm its use as the factory. In 1925, a 
deed described the property as having improvenents of "a 2 story brick dwelling with 
eight rooms including a storeroom, a brick warehouse, chicken houses, stable, 
hog-pen, etc." 'Ihe storeroom, undoubtedly a general store, was probably on the 
first story of the structure. 'Ihe brick warehouse was possibly the structw 

(Continued on separate sheet) 



8. Significance Survey No. F-4-52 

Period 
_ prehistoric 
- 140(}-1499 

- 1 50(}-1599 
- 160(}-1699 

- 170(}-1799 
~ 180(}-1899 
~ 190(}-

Areas of Significance-Check and justify below 
_archeology-prehistoric _community planning _landscape architecture----X- religion 
_ archeology-historic _ conservation _ law __ science 
_ agriculture _economics _ literature _ sculpture 
_K_ architecture _ education _ military _ social/ 
_ art _engineering _ music humanitarian 
~ commerce _ exploration/settlement _ philosophy _ theater 
_ communications _x_ industry _ politics/government _ transportation 

_ invention _other (specify) 

Specific dates c. 1840- c. 1930 Builder/ Architect 

check: Applicable Criteria: x A 
and/or 

Applicable Exception: 

Level of Significance: 

A 

B x C 

B 

national 

D 

c D E F G 

state x local 

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and 
support. 

The Hannony SUrvey District is significant for the log, brick, aOO. stone 
vernacular architecture of its dwellings arrl conunercial ruildings dating from about 
the 1840's to about 1900, which were associated with a woolen factory, a blacksmith 
shop, a shoemaker's shop, several general stores, arrl other related village 
businesses during the period. '!he linear pattern of development alorq the Little 
catoctin Creek, the pcMer source for the major industry, the woolen factory, arrl the 
roads intersecting near the factory illustrates the way in which rural industrial 
centers became settlements. '!he only possible visible remnants of the industrial 
buildings are a stone arrl brick Wilding r1J.N a residence at the corner of Brethren 
Church arrl Hannony Roads arrl a small log warehouse with brick veneer on the opposite 
.;ide of the road. '!he stone arrl brick Wilding was identified on the 1858 Born map 
as the woolen factory, rut no further confinning information has been yet located. 
The village also has three churches, two of which remain active, which probably led 
to its circa 1890 name change, from Beallsville to Harmony, irxiicating the placid, 
cooperative life of closely knit rural conununities. Although small, their 
irxiividual beliefs remained strong throughout the period. 'Ihe Harmony United 
Brethren Church, ruilt in 1870, succeeds a circa 1790 log structure on another site 
which was one of the first permanent churches ruilt by the Middletown Valley German 
Brethren congregation, the earliest in Frederick County. From about the 1750's to 
the 1790 's, the Brethren met in members' houses or barns. 'Ihe Evangelical Lutheran 
Church of 1879 arrl the fonner Reformed Church of 1909 both are primarily significant 
for their vernacular interpretations of architectural styles which are 
representative of their respective time periods: Romanesque Revival in the eclectic 
1870's for the Lutherans arrl the Shingle style in the Arts arrl Crafts-influenced 
early 1900's for the Reformed church. 

The or1gll1S of Beallsville, later Hannony, are obscure, rut are urxioubtedly 
based on the establishment of a mill of some type on the Little catoctin Creek 
during the first quarter of the 19th century. An illegible reference to a named 
mill appears in an 1849 deed which identifies the mill as then David Kailer's 
property. Several biographies of the SUrmners family in the Williams arrl McKinsey 
1910 county history refer to George W. SUrmners as the owner of the woolen factory 
fo:nnerly owned by capt. David Kailer. Presumably Kailer converted the mill to this 
use sometime during the 1840's. Related service_s such as blacksmithing, shoemaking, 
general mercharrlise stores, wagon arrl saddlery shops are shown as being in the 
'.rillage or its vicinity by 1858, irxiicating a fairly self-sufficient conununity. In 

(Continued on separate sheet) 
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1 O. Geographical Data 
Acreage of nominated property __ 2_5_a_c_r __ e_s ___ _ 
Quadrangle name Middletown, Md. Quadrangle scale __ l_:_2_4_o_o_o __ _ 
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11. Form Prepared By 

name/title Janet L. Davis, Historic Sites Surveyor 

organization Frederick County Planning & zoning Dept. date April 1992 
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by 
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record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of 
individual property rights. 
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7. 1 Description (Continued) 

SURVEY No. F-4-52 

described in the following paragraph. '!he stone fourrlations of the stable and 
hcq pen are partially visible west of the J::uilding and a brick smokehouse with 
a stone foundation and a corrugated metal roof stands innnediately west of the 
house. 

Brick warehouse: '!he probable structure described as brick in the 1925 deed 
mentioned above is actually a 1-1/2 story lcq J::uilding located on the east side 
of Hannony Road opp:::>site the intersection of Brethren Church Road. '!he brick 
veneer was probably added in the 1850's to a Wilding erected about 1840. It 
has a one-story shed roofed porch on the west elevation with the northern end 
partially enclosed with tongue-and-groove siding. '!he structure has three bays 
on the west with a center entrance currently having a tongue-and-groove door. 
'!he interior end chimney is located on the south elevation. '!he windows are 
6 / 6 and are partial! y missing in most openings. '!he east elevation has two 
bays with a second door near the southeast corner. '!he north elevation has a 
single window bay. '!he gable roof is covered with corrugated metal. 

Ford's Grocery: '!his is a deteriorated, shed-roofed frame J::uilding located on 
the east side of Harmony Road just south of the bridge over the tributary 
stream. It has vertical siding and three bays with swing doors in the west 
elevation. Above the central door is a weathered metal sign advertising Royal 
Crown Cola over the name "Ford's Grocery". '!he southern end of the structure 
apparently had a machine shop of unknown purpose, although some machinery is 
still in place. '!he south wall is partially open for ventilation of the 
space. 'Ihe rest of the interior was inaccessible. Since the Ford family has 
owned the property from 1925 to the present, it is assmned the structure dates 
from the mid-1920's, although county directories for that period do not list 
the store. 

Hannony Church of the Brethren: '!he one-story stone church wilt about 1870 
with additions of the early and middle 20th century is located on the north 
side of Brethren Church Road at the extreme western end of the survey 
district. '!he entire structure has been covered with stucco and is painted 
white, covering most identifying features of its construction. '!he stone 
foundation of the original structure is more uneven than the concrete block of 
the addition at the north end of the J::uilding, although painted white. '!he 
hall plan church has a gable roof currently covered with composition material. 
An open belfry probably added in the late 1890's or early 1900's is located at 
the south end of the ridgeline. A projecting foyer on the south elevation is 
also a 20th century addition. '!he windows in the three bays of the east and 
west elevations of the original part are modern 1/1 replacements. Fast of the 
church and partially enclosed by a concrete block fence is the cemetery, with 
graves dating from about 1790, the approximate date of the congregation's 
formation. 

Hannony Evangelical Lutheran Church (Hannony Community Lutheran Church): '!he 
rectangular church is located on the south side of Brethren Church Road about 
0.1 mile west of the Harmony Road intersection. Built in 1879 according to the 
datestone at the northwest corner, the brick Romanesque Revival church has 
three bays on the north elevation with round-arched windows and double doors in 
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the center with molding panels repeating the arch of the wirrlow openings. '!he 
transom al::ove the doo:rway is semicircular. In front of the entrance is a modern 
brick porch platfonn topped with a concrete deck. '!he foundation is stone and 
the cornice is corbeled. '!he gable roof is covered with standing seam metal. 
'!he wirrlows have 9/9 sash with textured glass. '!he east and west elevations 
have four bays in recessed panels. 

Reformed Olurch: located on the west side of Hannony Road facing the 
intersection with Hollow Road, the 1909 stone church has two stories with a 
bell tower at the north.east corner. '!he gables an:l the upper level of the bell 
tower are covered with wood shingles, which are currently very weathered an:l 
somewhat deteriorated. '!he gable roof is covered with pressed metal. '!he east 
elevation has three bays with a center entry through a simple 6-panel door. 
'!he flanking wirrlows are 6/6 on the first story. '!he upper story wirrlows are 
12/3 with stenciled stained glass. '!he tower contains another entrance with 
double paneled doors in the north side. '!he north and south elevations have 
three bays, with stenciled stained glass in the south elevation wirrlows and 
clear glass on the north elevation. '!he west elevation projects from the main 
bulk of the church, probably containing the vestry. At the rear of the 
building are two deteriorated frame privies. '!he church building is currently 
used for conununity activities and is CMned by a local civic band. 

Smith-Unverzagt Residence and Shoemaking Shop, 9545 Hannony Road: '!he 
two-story brick L-plan building has two 3-bay sections facing west, the 
southern section having the longer facade an:l the northern having a gable 
facade. The southern part was presumably the residence and the gable-fronted 
section the shoemaking shop. The building had center entries in each section, 
with paneled doors with upper sections of glass. '!he wirrlow openings have 
plain lintels in the residence section and those in the shop section have 
molded lintels. '!he sash is 1/1 in the residence and 2/2 in the shop. '!he 
shop doorway has a transom and sidelights with molded soffits. In the gable is 
a semi-circular wirrlow. A one-story porch extends across both sections, 
supported on chamfered posts. '!he roof of the building is corrugated metal and 
the chlinneys are located at the gable ends. located northeast of the house is 
a frame chicken house with vertical siding and a corrugated metal shed roof, 
undoubtedly a building of the late 19th or early 20th century. '!he main 
structure possibly dates from about 1840. It is identified on the 1858 map as 
C. Smith, who is described in Williams and McKinsey's History of Frederick 
County as a shoemaker to whom Henry Unverzagt {born 1833, Hesse-Dannstadt, 
Gennany) apprenticed himself in the 1850's. Unverzagt purchased the property 
and the business from Smith in 1860 and went on to become the owner of several 
buildings and fanns in the vicinity of Hannony. The shoemaking business at its 
peak in the last quarter of the 19th century employed as many as 6 workers. In 
1866, Unverzagt started a produce store, which he sold to Charles Coblentz 
al::out 1890, continuing the shoemaking business. Coblentz made the store a 
general merchandise operation. It is not clear whether both commercial 
activities took place in this structure. 

Brandenhrrg House, 9510 Hannony Road: '!his is a two-story brick dwelling with 
two sections located on the west side of the road. '!he three-bay northern 
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section has a side hall entrance and entry porch. 'Ihe southern section has two 
bays with an additional entrance. 'Ihe roof of the entire structure is 
corrugated metal. 'Ihree chimneys are located at each gable erx:l and at the 
junction of the two sections. 'Ihe windows are 3/1 with plain lintels. A 
two-story rear wing extends from the northwest corner. 'lWo non-contril::uting 
outb.lildings are located west of the b.rllding. 'Ihe house probably was b.rllt 
about 1840, possibly by Daniel Brarrlenhrrg, whose son John N. purchased the 
house in 1849. John N. Brandenhrrg was a blacksmith throughout the last half 
of the 19th century in Harmony. Both the 1858 and 1873 maps show the shop was 
located on the east side of Harmony Road approximately opposite the house, l:Jut 
it has been demolished. 

SUrnme.rs House, 9518 Harmony Road: 'Ihe SUrnme.rs House is a two-story brick 
dwelling with four bays facing east. Two entrances occupy the center bays and 
a one-story porch extends across the east elevation. 'Ihe window openings have 
plain lintels and 6/3 and 1/1 sash. 'Ihe cornice is corbelled brick and the 
gable roof is covered with corrugated metal. 'Ihe chimneys are located at the 
gable erx:ls. On the rear of the house is a modern concrete block addition. A 
frame and stone garage with a smokehouse attached to the west elevation is 
located southeast of the house. '!here are approximately 3 other contril:Juting 
outl:Juildings. '!he house was l:Juilt about 1840 and is identified on the 1858 and 
1873 maps as a store owned by J. SUrrnrers. Joshua SUrrnrers (born 1845) and other 
members of the SUmmers family owned much property in the vicinity of Harmony, 
including the Woolen Mill, according to Williams & McKinsey' s History. Joshua 
managed the mill for four years probably during the 1870's, then took over the 
rra.nagement of the oakland Mill (demolished), a grist mill also owned by the 
family, which was located near the present Myersville Road south of U.S. 40. 
'!he store in the SUrnme.rs House was probably run by others and was presumably a 
general store. 

3943 Brethren Olurch Road: '!his is a two-story house possibly with log 
structure in its main section, now covered with gerrnan siding. '!he house has 
three bays on the first story and two on the second. A one-story porch with 
turned columns and brackets extends across the main elevation. 'Ihe window 
openings have molded frames and 2/2 sash. A smaller modern window has been 
added to the second story on the north elevation. 'Ihe gable rood is covered 
with composition material. A noncontril::uting garage and shed are also located 
on the property. '!he house was probably b.rllt about 1850. 

E. Michael House, 9428 Hollow Road: 'Ihis house also is probably log under the 
exterior of gerrnan siding. It has two stories and three bays on the north 
elevation with a one-story bracketed porch. 'Ihe sash is 6/6 and the gable roof 
is composition. An exterior reb.rllt brick chllnney is located on the west gable 
end. Two non-contril:Juting outb.lildings are located south of the house. '!he 
l:Juilding was probably b.rllt between 1840-1850 and is identified on the 1858 map 
as that of E. Michael. 

9524 Harmony Road: 'Ihe two-story dwelling may be log under the current gerrnan 
and clapboard siding. It has three bays on the first story and two on the 
second. '!he one-story porch extends across the east elevation and the sash 
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varies from 6/6 and 6/2 on the first story to 3/1 on the secon:i. 'Ihe standing 
seam metal roof is a IOOdern installation and an exterior brick and stone 
chimney is located on the south gable en:i. An exterior concrete block chllnney 
is on the north gable. 'Ihe house was presumably Wilt about 1840-1850. 

9521 Hannony Road: 'Ihis Wilding has a similar plan to the Smith-Unverzagt 
House at 9545 Hannony. It has two sections, one a residence with two stories 
and three bays adjoining a gable-fronted, three-bay section presumably once a 
store. It has the same center entrance in each section and the semi-circular 
win:iow in the gable as in the Smith-Unverzagt Wilding. 'Ihe exterior here is 
asbestos shingles and the sash is varied: 1/1 on the first story of both 
sections, 2/2 on the secon:i story of the gable section, and 6/6 on the secon:i 
story of the residence. 'Ihe roof is covered with corrugated metal. 'Ihe 
entrance to the gable section has a 2-light transom and a glazed panel door. A 
one story porch extends across the entire facade and a IOOdern carport is 
attached to the south elevation of the Wilding. 'Ihis property was also owned 
by John Brandenb.rrg, the blacksmith, and later by Henry Unverzagt. Probably 
b..J.ilt about 1840-50, its possible use as a store is unconfirmed by title 
research or historical maps. 

9404, 9433, 9501, 9528, 9541, 9532 Hannony Road; 9435, 9440 Hollow Road; 3932, 
3941, 3938, 3941 Brethren Church Road: 'Ihese structures in the survey district 
share some characteristics, primarily in tenn.s of their level of alteration. 
All have some form of artificial siding, composition or metal roof coverings, 
and changes to rear wings. Most have possible log construction and were 
probably originally tuilt about 1840-1870. 'IWo of the dwellings have 
accompanying contrib..J.ting bank barns of the late 19th or early 20th century: 
3932 Brethren Church Road and 9404 Hannony Road. 'Ihe Brethren Church Road barn 
also has a concrete block milk house of the 1930's and a secon:i, frame 
garobrel-roofed barn of the early 20th century. Most other outbuildings are 
non-contrib..J.ting except a gerrnan-sided smmner kitchen with a corrugated metal 
roof and 6/6 win:iows at 3932 Brethren Church, a small frame barn with vertical 
siding and a stan:iing seam metal roof at 9440 Hollow Road, a log or frame 
smokehouse with vertical board and vinyl siding and a corrugated metal roof at 
9528 Hannony Road, and, at 9532 Hannony Road, a log or frame, two-level 
outb..J.ilding with a stone foundation expJSed at the road with a garage entrance 
formed by concrete block inf ill. 'Ihe upper level has vinyl siding, a 
corrugated metal roof and 2/2 win:iows. 
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this respect, Beallsville resembled the beginnings of many towns in Frederick 
County. Its remoteness from the major turnpike routes kept it from increasing in 
size, although it had a post office and a school during the secorxl half of the 19oth 
century. It was overshadowed by Myersville which was on a more-traveled route to 
Smithsburg from Middletown, especially after the 1898 beginning of electric train 
service between Middletown and Myersville. By the late 1930's, the village had long 
since lost most of its hlsinesses to the larger towns and transportation 
iltlprovements such as U.S. 40 just south of town reduced the village to a residential 
center rather than attracting trade to the area. 
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F-4-52 
Harmony Survey District 
Frederick County 
Detail from 1858 Isaac Bond Map 
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F-4-52 
Harmony Survey District 
Frederick county 
c.o. Titus, Atlas of Frederick 

county, 1873. 
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